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RESOLUTION NO.
RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE AN
EXISTING DUPLEX TO BE UTILIZED AS SHORT-TERM RENTALS UPON PROPERTY

SITUATED IN A LB LIMITED BUSINESS ZONING AND IDENTIFIED BY MUNICIPAL
ADDRESS 238 RODENBERG AVENUE A & B

WHEREAS, on Thursday, April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-019-PC, Brett Payne on behalf
of Hagos Investment 242, LLC, a request for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified
as 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that the owner/applicant had submitted a request for
Conditional Use, to authorize an existing duplex to be utilized as Short-Term Rentals, for
property situated within a LB Limited Business zone, and identified as 238 Rodenberg Avenue
A & B (re: Tax Parcel No. 1210H-02-076.011); and

WHEREAS, it was determined that this Conditional Use request meets all of the

standards, as follows:

a. The Conditional Use complies with all applicable zoning district
standards;

b. The Conditional Use complies with all Use-Specific Standards;

c. The Conditional Use is compatible with the character of surrounding
lands and the uses permitted in the zoning district(s) of surrounding
lands;

d. The Conditional Use avoids significant adverse odor, noise, glare, and
vibration impacts on surrounding lands regarding refuse collection,
service delivery, parking and loading, signs, lighting, and other site
elements;

e. The Conditional Use is configured and designed to screen, buffer, or
otherwise minimize adverse visual impacts on adjacent lands;




f. The Conditional Use avoids significant deterioration of water and air
resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural
resources,

g. The Conditional Use maintains safe and convenient ingress and egress
and traffic flow onto and through the site by vehicles and pedestrians,
and safe road conditions around the site;

h. The Conditional Use allows for the protection of property values and
the ability of neighboring lands to develop uses permitted in the
zoning district; and

i. The Conditional Use complies with all other relevant city, state and
federal laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, upon reflection of the
information related by the applicant at the public hearing, voted (12-0-0) to recommend approval of
the requested Conditional Use, to authorize an existing duplex, situated upon a parcel of land
measuring 71’ x 96.47’, to be utilized as Short—Term Rentals, for property located within a LB-
Limited Business zone, and identified by municipal address 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B
(Tax Parcel No.1210H-02-076.011), having determined that the proposed Conditional Use had
been found to be in compliance with the Land Development Ordinance, and finding also that the
use promotes the public interest at this location; that the use has been designed, located and
proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety and welfare will be protected; that said
use will not cause substantial injury to other properties in the neighborhood in which located;
and that the use prdposed conforms to all zoning district regulations of the LB Limited Business

zoning district; and

WHEREAS, the Biloxi City Council, after consideration of all facts presented, hereby
adopts the report and findings of the Biloxi Planning Commission, and in so doing, determines that
approval of the requested Conditional Use is appropriate for the properties identified as 238

Rodenberg Avenue A & B.




NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, THAT this requested Conditional Use approval, to
authorize an existing duplex, situated upon a parcel of land measuring 71° X 96.47°, to be
utilized as Short-Term Rentals, for property located within a Limited Business zone, and
identified by municipal addresses 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B (Tax Parcel No.1210H-02-
076.011), as addressed within Case No. 26-019-PC, Brett Payne on behalf of Hagos Investment
242, LLC, is appropriate, having determined that the proposed use has been found to be in
compliance with the Land Development Ordinance, and finding also that the Short-Term
Rentals, as presented, promotes the public interest at this location; that the use has been
designed, located and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety and welfare will
be protected; that said use will not cause substantial injury to other properties in the
neighborhood in which located; and that this Conditional Use conforms to all zoning

regulations, as required to proceed with the establishment of this use at these locations.

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------




RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO A REQUEST
FOR A CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE AN EXISTING DUPLEX TO
BE UTILIZED AS SHORT-TERM RENTALS UPON PROPERTY SITUATED IN A LB
LIMITED BUSINESS ZONING AND IDENTIFIED BY MUNICIPAL ADDRESS 238
RODENBERG AVENUE A & B

WHEREAS, on Thursday, April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-019-PC, Brett Payne on behalf
of Hagos Investment 242, LLC, a request for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified
as 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that the owner/applicant had submitted a request for
Conditional Use, to authorize an existing duplex to be utilized as Short-Term Rentals, for
property situated within a LB Limited Business zone, and identified as 238 Rodenberg Avenue
A & B (re: Tax Parcel No. 1210H-02-076.011); and

WHEREAS, it was determined that this Conditional Use request meets all of the
standards, as follows: |

a. The Conditional Use complies with all applicable zoning district
standards;

b. The Conditional Use complies with all Use-Specific Standards;

c. The Conditional Use is compatible with the character of surrounding
lands and the uses permitted in the zoning district(s) of surrounding
lands;

d. The Conditional Use avoids significant adverse odor, noise, glare, and
vibration impacts on surrounding lands regarding refuse collection,
service delivery, parking and loading, signs, lighting, and other site
clements;

e. The Conditional Use is configured and designed to screen, buffer, or
otherwise minimize adverse visual impacts on adjacent lands;




f. The Conditional Use avoids significant deterioration of water and air
resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural
resources;

g. The Conditional Use maintains safe and convenient ingress and egress
and traffic flow onto and through the site by vehicles and pedestrians,
and safe road conditions around the site;

h. The Conditional Use allows for the protection of property values and
the ability of neighboring lands to develop uses permitted in the
zoning district; and

i. The Conditional Use complies with all other relevant city, state and
federal laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, upon reflection of the
information related by the applicant at the public hearing, voted (12-0-0) to recommend approval of
the requested Conditional Use, to authorize an existing duplex, situated upon a parcel of land
measuring 71’ x 96.47°, to be utilized as Short-Term Rentals, for property located within a LB-
Limited Business zone, and identified by municipal address 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B
(Tax Parcel No. 1210H-02-076.011), having determined that the proposed Conditional Use had
been found to be in compliance with the Land Development Ordinance, and finding also that the
use promotes the public interest at this location; that the use has been designed, located and
proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety and welfare will be protected; that said
use will not cause substantial injury to other properties in the neighborhood in which located;
and that the use proposed conforms to all zoning district regulations of the LB Limited Business

zoning district; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, having given the Planning
Commission's recommendation full consideration, has determined that this is a matter of general
public concern, and being so, it is in the best interest of the community that a second public hearing
be conducted on this matter before the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF




THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, THAT an additional public hearing will be conducted by
the City Council in reference to Case No. 26-019-PC, Brett Payne on behalf of Hagos Investment
242, LLC, on a date to be set and in accordance with all requirements of Section 23-2-3 (F) of the

City of Biloxi Land Development Ordinance governing the conduct of public hearings.




RESOLUTION NO.
RESOLUTION TO DENY CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE AN
EXISTING DUPLEX TO BE UTILIZED AS SHORT-TERM RENTALS UPON PROPERTY

SITUATED IN A LB LIMITED BUSINESS ZONING AND IDENTIFIED BY MUNICIPAL
ADDRESS 238 RODENBERG AVENUE A & B

WHEREAS, on Thursday, April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr, Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-019-PC, Brett Payne on behalf
of Hagos Investment 242, LL.C, a request for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified
as 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commiséion members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that the owner/applicant had submitted a request for
Conditional Use, to authorize an existing duplex to be utilized as Short-Term Rentals, for
property situated within a LB Limited Business zone, and identified as 238 Rodenberg Avenue A
& B (re: Tax Parcel No. 1210H-02-076.011); and

WHEREAS, it was determined that this Conditional Use request meets all of the standards,
as follows:

a. The Conditional Use complies with all applicable zoning district
standards;

b. The Conditional Use complies with all Use-Specific Standards;

c. The Conditional Use is compatible with the character of surrounding
lands and the uses permitted in the zoning district(s) of surrounding
lands;

d. The Conditional Use avoids significant adverse odor, noise, glare, and
vibration impacts on surrounding lands regarding refuse collection,
service delivery, parking and loading, signs, lighting, and other site
elements;

e. The Conditional Use is configured and designed to screen, buffer, or
otherwise minimize adverse visual impacts on adjacent lands;




f. The Conditional Use avoids significant deterioration of water and air
resources, wildlife habitat, scenic resources, and other natural
resources;

g. The Conditional Use maintains safe and convenient ingress and egress
and traffic flow onto and through the site by vehicles and pedestrians,
and safe road conditions around the site;

h. The Conditional Use allows for the protection of property values and
the ability of neighboring lands to develop uses permitted in the
zoning district; and

i. The Conditional Use complies with all other relevant city, state and
federal laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, upon reflection of the
information related by the applicant at the public hearing, voted (12-0-0) to recommend approval of
the requested Conditional Use, to authorize an existing duplex, situated upon a parcel of land
measuring 71’ x 96.47’, to be utilized as Short-Term Rentals, for property located within a LB-
Limited Business zone, and identified by municipal address 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B (Tax
Parcel No. 1210H-02-076.011), having determined that the proposed Conditional Use had been
found to be in compliance with the Land Development Ordinance, and finding also that the use
promotes the public interest at this location; that the use hés been designed, located and proposed to
be operated so that the public health, safety and welfare will be protected; that said use will not
cause substantial injury to other properties in the neighborhood in which located; and that the use
proposed conforms to all zoning district regulations of the LB Limited Business zoning district;
and -

WHEREAS, the City Council, ha\;ing ~given the Biloxi Planning Commission’s
recommendation serious thought, has determined that this Conditional Use, as presented, is not
appropriate as submitted for the property suggested.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

OF THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, THAT having given the Planning Commission's




recommendation full consideration, hereby rejects said recommendation and hereby denies the
requested Conditional Use for the property identified as 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B, Case
No. 26-019-PC, Brett Payne on behalf of Hagos Investment 242, LLC, based upon a

determination that

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Brett Payne on behalf of Robel Tedros Hagos

Scheduled for
April 2, 2026 Case No. 26-019-PC
PC Meeting Conditional Use
Short-Term Rentals
Biloxi
" established 1699
Planning Commission
Case Fact Sheet
Case No.: 26-019-PC
Name of Owner: Robel Tedros Hagos
Applicant: Brett Payne :
Address of Property 238 Rodenberg Avenue A & B
Tax Parcel/Ward: 1210H-02-076.011/Ward 1
Request: Conditional Use .

Purpose of Request:

Present Zéﬁing:
Size of Prbberty:
Flood Zone:
Present Uge:

Most Nearly

Bounded By (streets):'

Adverse Influences:

Positive Influences:

To consider -an application requesting Conditional Use
approval, to authorize an existing duplex, situated upon a
parcel of land measuring 71" X 96.47°, to be utilized as
Short-Term Rentals, for property located within a Limited
Business zone, and identified by municipal addresses 238
Rodenberg Avenue A & B (Tax Parcel No. 1210H 02-

076.011).

i LB - Limited Business

71" X 96.47 (more or less)

X

Duplex

To thé North of Irish Hill Drive; to the Soufh of Carrol Drive;

to the West of Georgia Drive; and to the East of and fronting

Rodenberg Avenue.

Care must be exercised before granting Conditiohal Use
approval, to ensure that the objectives of City regulations are
fully followed and that adjoining residential properties are

protected.

The requested Conditional Use would allow the applicants
the right to offer an existing duplex for rental periods of less




Letters or
Concerns stated:

Comments/
Recommendations:

Options:

Brett Payne on behalf of Robel Tedros Hagos
Case No.-26-019-PC

Conditional Use

Short-Term Rental

Page 2

than 30 days in duration.

The Planning Division Office has not received any written
communication relative to this case as of March 26, 2026.

Brett Payne on behalf of Robel Tedros Hagos, has submitted
an application requesting Conditional Use approval, to
authorize an existing duplex, situated upon a parcel! of land
measuring 71" X 96.47', to be utilized as Short-Term
Rentals, for property located within a Limited Business
zone, and identified by municipal addresses 238 Rodenberg
Avenue A & B (Tax Parcel No.1210H-02-076.011).

It should be noted that all Short-Term Re_nfals in the City of
Biloxi are subject to specific regulations, as provided by City
Ordinance. Should this duplex be recommended for approval

-as Short-Term Rentals, all city regulatiohs involved must be

fully addressed.

As part of any Conditional Use application review, the
Planning Commission must determine that the use will
provide for the public interest at this location, will be designed,
located, and proposed to be operated so that the public
health, safety, and welfare will be protected; that the use will
not cause substantial injury to other property (ies); and that
the use will conform to all district regulations in which located.

1. Recommend approval of this request for Conditional Use, finding that the use
promotes the public interest at this location, that the use has been designed,
located, and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety and
welfare will be protected, and that said use should not cause substantial injury to
other properties in the neighborhood in which it is located.

2. Recommend denial of this request for Conditional Use, having determined that
said use does not promote the public interest at this location, and has not been
found to meet all Zoning District Regulations, as outlined in the Land

Development Ordinance.




To Be Completed by Ownerf pplicant | Date: 6! 16 GM
Name of Applicant: (if different than Owner)

Name of Righ wner(s):
%5@?'/9 ) %/‘?/995 HneAr @WW\,&»
Ward Number

Property Add .
L re(sfv&uwb@?@ Ave. Aty Dilon S

Tax Parcel Identification Numbg?
(G GITE)! %m COOoEiD oo 00D
5 A ENiaE

LI

e ress of Applicant (if different than
& Oa el lieg Aye

Mailing Address of Property Owner
[ 3C0 L. Joh ﬂscw/v{u? o2

City: &/ (ayem

State: /A "

Zip: 77026

County  Sew ﬁ;t;z@ RO yL 7 < o): i\ ;

Telephone:(7) 338 61%% & Te)e_gbgﬁe 7 %"ﬂ ﬂ)l(‘al

Property Size (please give in acres or by drmens&on g}i;___}{ *(‘ ,‘
Present Zoning C!assn‘icatxon LD R4 %ugg e
Is the propert B f?"é’t? Yes No ¥

requxred for each)
Text Amendment ; :
Zoning Map Amendment — muSET ation: g
Planned Development

Master Plan/Update

Preliminary Subdivision Review

/| Conditional Use

" | Public ROW Vacation

Sireet Name Change

Variance

Appeal

Tree Removal

Revised March 2025
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GENERAL INFORMATION, READ BEFORE EXECUTING. Attendance by the applicant(s) at
the public hearing is mandatory; however, the applicant may designate a representative {o
attend the public hearing on his/her behalif, providT said representative has been properly

designated to speak on the applicant's behalf |either by writien permission or oral
designation by the applicant at the Public Hearing. If a continuance is to be granted, the
applicant must request same In writing a minimum of seven (7) days in advance of the
scheduled public hearing. The applicant acknowledges that, in signing this application, ali
conditions and reqguirements inherent in the application process have been fully explained
and understood, including the timetable for processing of the application; the applicant has
further received the following appropriate handouts: Application Processing Timetable;
instructions for Application Completion, Procedures for a Conditional Use or Community
Unit Plan; and Variance Procedures. The completed application must be returned to the
Planning Office not later than the first or third Thursday of any month in order that a public
hearing may be held on the first or third Thursday; qf the following month. Receipt of fee(s)
does not constitute receipt of a completed appli’5 t n

Sig’nature of Rigntful Owner

Le

adtschonent C. mte»r z~1(o-w

NOTE: Please see attached instructions for details on documentis required for

a complete application.

Revised March 2075




R e DR e A R O e

CALIFORNIA ALL- PURPOSE
CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity
of the individual who signed the decument to which this certificate is attached,
and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of  California }

County of __San Diego }

ere Insert name and Utie of the oficer)

On FP.berj 1¢2 2026 _before me, C. Miller , | Notary Public ,

i
q

personally appeared Rabel  Tedros Haltos ‘ ,
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidenge to be the person(s) whose
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorjzed capacity(ies), and that by
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the persorj(s), or the entity upon behalf of
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

L e e e S R T

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that
the foregoing paragraph is frue and correct.
' CMER T
WITNESS my hand and official seal. ) _Coffmissiori No. 2394538 2
2l NOTARY PUBLIG - CALIFORNIA-T

SAN DIEGO COUNTY %

> ‘ ez 57 Commission Expires February 53,2026
Notary Public Signature (Notary Public Seal)
® INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THIS FORM A

ADDITIONAL OPTIONAL IN FORMATION 7 form complies with current California statutes vegarding notary wording and, ,

if needed, should be completed and attached to the document, Acknowledgnients

DESCRIPTION OF THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT from other statedmay be chmpleted for documents being sentto that state so long :

B as the wording dpes not require the California notary to violate California notary

i ; Sy L eaditn, law.

i (Title or descriptiorrof attached document) e State and County information must be the State and County where the document {3
signer(s) persontally appeared before the notary public for acknowledgment.

i - — o Date of notarization must be the date that the signer(s) personally appeared which
(Title or description of aftached document continued) must also be the same date the acknowledgmentais cchr)qfleted. v
» The notary public must print his or her name as it appears within his or her
Number of Pages DocumentDate_ commission followed by a comma and then your title (notary public).
¢ Print the name(s) of document signer(s) who personally appear at the time of
notarization,
: CAPACITY CLAIMED BY THE SIGNER s Indicate the co;;ect singular or plural forms by crossing off incorrect forms (i.e.
.. ) helshe/theys- is fare ) or circling the correct forms, Failure to correctly indicate this
O Individual (s) information may lead to rejection of document recording,
71 Corporate Officer o The notary seal impression must be clear and photographically reproducible.
. Impression must not cover text or lines, If seal impression smudges; re-seal if a-
(Title) sufficient area permits, otherwise complete a different acknowledgment form.
O Partner(s) . ;S};lgnature ofl thls notary public must match the signature on file with the office of
’ ¢ county cler
1 Attorney-in-Fact %  Additichal information is not required but could help to ensure this
1 Trustee(s) ackpow edgment is not misused or attached to a different document,
Other < Indicatgtitle or type of attached document, number of pages and date.
3 : % Indicate the capacity claimed by the signer. If the claimed capacity is a
corporaie officer, indicate the title (i.e. CEO, CFO, Secretary).
WWW, NotaryClasses,com 800-873-9865 » Securely attach this document to the signed document with a staple. ,

e e e e T e T B e L B e oL o B o L Ty Zet s DL A T

{




DATE:,2/10/2672C2

Condmonal Use — The purpose of the Conditional Use is to provide for certain uses that, because of
their unique characteristics, can be allowed with special consideration in each case of the impact of
those uses upon neighboring land and of the public need for the particular use at the particular
location. Because of their unique characteristics, however, each of these requires the exercise of

planning judgment on a case-by-case basis.

PLEASE ATTACH A SEPARATE STATEMEI\TT OF SUPPORT - The narrafive must set

forth proposed use and justification for the change, utilj 3 criteria set forth in Section 23-6-1(e) of the -
Biloxi Code of Ordinances and including all propeset

ind, existing structures as well as the uses
planned for the site in question. Be specific as to-deVéiop

t proposals, sale of property, or other
transactions/plans proposed or scheduled for preparatlon subjectf‘to this rezoning request being granted

approval. )
Detailed Site Plan Attached (If no site plan is attached this apphcatlon is considered

incomplete and will not be accepted.)
Criteria: v
1. Is the use necessary to promote the public lnterest at’ thast,;locatlon? Yes, | No
Please explain: Qoé@n Dunate MEQA@A . =4 gﬁwfig@v& -\»’ -
we Wk AL AD e oD E R &X«M wmé«
2. lIsthe use designe .Y
Yes No

public health, safe

Neighborhood in whloh lt is Iooated’?

Please explain™ YD VOO hap W0 e
=) NDI "D fnopde . O 4
4. Does the use conform to all district regulations of the applicable zoning district | Yes | No
in which it is to be located, unless other provisions are specifically set forth in /
the requirements governing specn‘lc Conditional Uses?

Please explain: (Mudlede “Ceva, TH\ R LD st e, (ang

A, Q,\L)d“cﬁ{\(\\, cﬁ\{\@\\%\m MJ\&C\Q ®. O m} b

"Revised September 1, 2022




| [ )

applicable:
Please explain

5. Have satisfactory provisions and arrangements been made concerning the following, where

Conditional Use Supplement

N/A

;.

Yes | No

1. Ingress and egress?

o

2. Off-street parking and loading areas, where required, with particular
attention to the economic, noise, glare or odor effects of the Conditional

Use on adjoining properties and properties generally in the
zoning district?

s

3. Refuse and service areas?

4. Utilities, with reference to location, availability nd“CoMtpe bmty’?

traffic safety, economic effect and compatlbmty and harmony*f
properties in the zoning district? g

7. Required yards and other

8. General compatibi
in the Zoning distr

Comments:

ol

oy n

Revised September 1, 2022
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Property Description - 246 Rodenberg Avenue

246 Rodenberg Ave, Biloxi is a duplex with two levels. Level one is Unit A and level two is Unit
B. The floor plans are almost identical except for the placement of the front door and Unit A
has a back door on the west side of the building. Only two bedrooms are utilized for living
quarters as bedrooms. The third bedroom is turned into a storage and cleaning closet for both
Units A and B. The distance from the back side of the building on the north side is 7 feet from
the back side of the adjacent building (250 Rodenberg Ave, Biloxi} which we are planning to
purchase and renovate next. The parking lot has 6 parking spaces. 4 parking spaces are facing
the North (front side) of the building. The additional spaces are in an L shaped concrete space
on the East side of the parking lot. This provides 6 parking spaces total for the duplex.

Each Unit has 2 bedrooms and two bathrooms. Each unit also has it’s own washer and dryer
as well. :

Property Description - 242 Rodenberg Avenue

242 Rodenberg Ave, Biloxi is a duplex with two levels. Level one is Unit A and level two is Unit
B. The floor plans are almost identical except for the placement of the front door and Unit A
has a back door on the west side of the building. Only two bedrooms are utilized for living
quarters as bedrooms. The third bedroom is turned into a storage and cleaning closet for both
Units A and B. The distance from the back side of the building on the south side is 7 feet from
the back side of the adjacent building (238 Rodenberg Ave, Biloxi) which we have purchased
and renovated already. The parking lot has 6 parking spaces. 4 parking spaces are facing the
North (front side) of the building and are noted with signs. The additional spaces are in an L
shaped concrete space on the East side of the parking lot. This provides 6 parking spaces total

for the duplex.
Each Unit has 2 bedrooms and two bathrooms. Each unit also has it’s own washer and dryer
as well.

Property Description - 238 Rodenberg Avenue

238 Rodenberg Ave, Biloxi is a duplex with two levels. Level one is Unit A and level two is Unit
B. The floor plans are almost identical except for the placement of the front door and Unit A
has a back door on the west side of the building. Only two bedrooms are utilized for living
quarters as bedrooms. The third bedroom is turned into a storage and cleaning closet for both
Units A and B. The distance from the back side of the building on the north side is 7 feet from
the back side of the adjacent building (242 Rodenberg Ave, Biloxi) which we have already
purchased and renovated. The parking lot has 6 parking spaces. 4 parking spaces are facing
the North (front side) of the building. The additional spaces are in an L shaped concrete space
on the East side of the parking lot. This provides 6 parking spaces total for the duplex.

Each Unit has 2 bedrooms and two bathrooms. Each unit also has it's own washer and dryer
as well,




2/9/2026

To the Planning and Zoning and the City Council of Biloxi,

We are Hagos Investments 242 LLC and we thank you for your time.

Our company has purchased 242 Rodenberg Avenue (A and B) and 238 Rodenberg Avenue (A
and B} in Biloxi, MS and 246 Rodenberg Avenue (A and B)

Our goal has always been to uplift the environment of Rodenberg Avenue by placing short
term/mid term family friendly rentals in the Duplexes lining this section of the city.

Since we have starting purchasing repair and running family friendly rentals in the area up to
code the area has become much more presentable. Far less trash and transient activity on the
drag. This makes the area more family friendly, resembling the subdivisions and areas around

it.
Already we have improved the particularly poor reputation which has lead the surrounding
property owners to be frustrated with the amount of legal activity and drug issues alpng

Rodenberg from these duplexes.

That is not the case anymore.

Rodenbery is a wonderful part and area of Biloxi with rich history as a drag. Help to support us
in revitalizing it please.

Thank you again for your time,

Robel Hagos,
Hagos Investments 242 LLC

2/9/2026
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BILOXI PLANNING COMMISSICN MEETING
APRIL 2ND, 2026
COMMUNTITY DEVELOPMENT,

DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR., MUNICIPAL BUILDING,
676 DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. BOULEVARD,
BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI,

BEGINNING AT 2:00 P.M,

PLANNING CCI\MSSION MEMBERS PRESENT:

Charlie Dellenger, Chairman
Ronnie Bogard
Kyle Carron
Robert Collier
Steve Delahousey
Dr, Larry Drawdy
Joe King

Debora Magee
Jirmy Poulos
John Snow

David Stanovich
Michael Todaro

ALSO PRESENT:

Jerry Creel, Director of Community Development
Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner

Caryle Lena, Planner I

Wayne Gray, Councilman Ward 1

Mike Nail Councilman Ward 3

Jamie Creel, Councilman Ward 4

Dr. Paul Tisdale, Councilman Ward 5

David Shoemaker, Councilman Ward 7

REPCRTED BY:

Melissa Burdine-Rodolfich
Simpson Burdine & Migues

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

2
C-0-N-T-E-N-T-8
CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING(S): PAGE:
26~015-£C 5
NEW PUBLIC HEARING(S):
26~018-PC 11
26-019~PC 20
26-020~PC 20
26-021-PC 20
26~-022-PC 32
TREE HEARING (S) :
TR-26-001 106
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CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

We're going to call the Planning
Commission meeting to order.

We'll record the members present:
Mr. Todaro, Ms. Magee, Mr, Stanovich, Mr. Bogard,
Mr. Collier, Mr, Delahousey, Dr. Drawdy,
Mr. Carron, Mr. King, Mr., Snow, Mr. Poulos; and
myself, Mr., Dellenger.

We also have Councilman Nail, Councilman
Tisdale, Councilman Creel and Councilman Shoemaker
in the audience, as well as Felicia Serpas, Senior
Planner; Jerry Creel, Director of Community
Development; Caryle Lena, Planner; and Melissa
Rodolfich, our court reporter. Theresa shelton is
here from Keesler as well.
MS. LENA:

She's right here.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Mr. Delahousey, would you lead us in a
moment of prayer, please?

(Moment of prayer.)
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Please stand for the Pledge.

Mr, Poulos, if you'd lead us in the

Pledge. *

7

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

(Pledge of Allegiance.)
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

I would like to welcome everybody here
to the Planning Commission meeting. It looks like
we have a full house, so, you know, if we can,
please turn the cell phones off, put them on
silent. And when you come to the podium, you will
have four minutes to speak., And please state your
name and address for the record when you come up
to the podium and sign in to the podium when you
come up.

Has everyone had a chance to review the
Planning Commission minutes from the last meeting?
MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Motion to approve.

MR. BOGARD:

Second.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Motion by Mr. Delahousey to approve;
second by Mr, Bogard.

All those in favor, please state by
saying "aye."

(Unanimous vote.)

CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Motion carries.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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Next case would be Case Number
26-019-PC, Brett Payne on behalf of Robel Tedros
Hagos, a request for a conditional use approval to
authorize an existing duplex situated upon a
parcel of land measuring approximately 71 by 96.47
feet to be utilized as short-term rentals for
property located within an LB, Limited Business,
zone and identified as 238 Rodenberg Avenue
A and B, Tax Parcel Number 1210H-02-076.011. This
was advertised on 3/20 and 3/27. If we could see
the video, please.

MS. SERPAS:

Uh-huh.

(Video played.)

Okay.

CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Please state your name and address and
what you're planning to do here on the property.
MR. PAYNE:

Brett Payne. I'm at 828 Oakleigh
Avenue, Unit 7 in Gulfport, Mississippi.

And I know that it's on the agenda three
times because there's three different properties.
Do you want me to address them all or do you

want —— because they're all the same other than

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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the location?
MR. CREEL:

You can go ahead and consolidate all
three of the structures in your presentation.
MR. PAYNE:

Okay. So I represent the company that
has purchased these three individual duplexes that
have been cleaned up and turned into short-term
rentals that are not operated as a short-term
rental currently because we don't have a permit.
They are operated at 30-day or more rentals for
military families that are part of the Rir Force
base that come here for training.

And they are advertised as
family-friendly. We have decorated them with all
kinds of different themes. Like, one is a Pokemon
theme. One is a Super Mario theme. One is a
Teenage Mutant Ninja Turtles theme, things like
this to attract families.

Since we've purchased the duplexes in
this row, Rodenberg Avenue has been cleaned up
significantly, and we plan on purchasing more
because it's a wonderful piece of drive down there
that used to be the talk of the town until, sounds

like, around Katrina. Investors had been buying
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the duplexes and turning them into Section 8. No
judgment on Section 8. However, it's created a
bit of a stir in the neighborhood and that area.
And we were looking forward to cleaning that up
and have already done so with these three
properties.

We had been here two years when we first
purchased the first one with our plan on
purchasing two more. Since then, we have done
that.

And it was brought to City Council and
it was voted no contest because there was only
four council members that attended and it was a
two and two vote, so it wasn't even by a majority
that it was cast down.

Anyway, that's what we're planning on,
continuing that effort and getting a conditional
use permit for short-term rental for these three
buildings. At the time we were in here last time,
it was only two. Now it's increased to three.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Let's let the record reflect that since
we're going to hear these three cases as one,
we're going to include those as the 238 Rodenberg

address, 242 Rodenberg and 246 Rodenberg Avenue.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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A1l of those being A and B properties on that.

Are all these three parcels continuous
in order --

MR. PRYNE:

Yes.
CHATIRMAN DELLENGER:

-- or is there anything in between them?
MR. PAYNE:

Yes, they're continuous in order. We
tried to keep it that way so that there is no —-
you know, that we can continue expanding the
beautification of the area.

MR. DELAHOUSEY:

If we approved this request, who would

manage the property?
MR. PAYNE:

So I'm actually the manager.
MR. DELAHOUSEY:

And where do you live?

MR. PAYNE:
I live in Gulfport.
MR. DELAHOUSEY:

Rren't we supposed to -- isn't there

some time --

MR. CREEL:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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Within the 30 minutes.
MR. DELRAHOUSEY:

Within 30 minutes.

MR, PAYNE:

I'm 10 minutes away.
MR. STANOVICH:

Did you say you plan on buying the rest
of them?
MR. PAYNE:

Yes, that's our goal, is to complete the
whole stream of duplexes as family-friendly
rentals specifically for --

MR, STANOVICH:

Well, buddy, you're the best thing to
happen to Rodenberg Avenue.
MR. PAYNE:

Well, I don't mean to pull on my own
chain, but I know. I have seen the difference.
You know, when we first were going down there,
there was trash everywhere and now people are
happy with what we have done so far.

MR. STANOVICH:

And we approved your last one, what, a

year or two ago?

MR, PAYNE:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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It was about two years ago.
MR. STANOVICH:

City Council turned it down. Well,
you've got City Council here today.
MR, PAYNE:

I hope that they take it serious. This
man is a gift for Biloxi.
MR. CREEL:

Don't comment. We don't want y'all to
have to recuse yourself.
MR, PAYNE:

T do hope that you guys approve. I
mean, we've done what we said we were going to do.

I think the two objections that we
recelved and comments that we received from the
City Council last time we were there was that,
wall, are you going to actually do what you say
that you're going to do if this is the only two
you're going to be purchasing? Well, since then,
we've actually purchased another one and they're
all renovated and operating correctly.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

How many more are there to purchase?
How many more are there besides these three?

MR. PAYNE:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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There is 10 more. So, you know, we've
got a chip in it, but it would help us if we were
able to get these permits because, you know, our
investors would see we're moving forward and we
don't have a block to keep our plans going. You
know, they're kind of dipping their toes in the
water a little bit right now and I need to keep
showing them that you guys are willing to work
with us too.

DR. DRAWDY:

Do you have plans to try to get the
additional 10?

MR. PAYNE:

Yes, We've already spoken on
conditionally purchasing two more.
MR, CARRON:

And it's actually two units per
building?
MR, PAYNE:

Two units per building, A and B,
upstairs and downstairs, yes, sir.

And they all have wonderful themes, like
I said, Teenage Mutant Ninja Turtles, DreamWorks
Pictures, you know, Super Mario. We didn't obtain

the trademarks to those.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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MR. CARTER:

I travel that road frequently and I've
seen a significant change in the way things look
there.

MR, PAYNE:

Yes, sir. And we -- that's our aim.
That was our whole entire goal in the first place,
and we benefit from that too. I'm not saying that
we're selfish and some sort of activists. I mean,
we're looking forward to owning that drag and
being a wonderful -- it's a great location. It
goes right to the beach and it goes right into
Pass and you have Sharkheads souvenirs right at
the end of that and -- as well as a seafood
restaurant right at the end of that.

It's a wonderful location. It's just
been poorly managed for the last few years.

MR, CARRON:

I have another question. Are you still
going to target like the Keesler personnel staying
there?

MR. PAYNE:

They're only for Keesler personnel

currently, yes, sir, and we're going to continue

doing that.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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MR, CARRON:

So all of those will continue being
that?

MR. PAYNE:

Yes, sir.

But right now, we do receive a hardship
in some ways because we only are allowed to do
30-day rentals, so there is spans in our calendar
which we would like to fill with Keesler personnel
to rent for less than 30 days, but we're unable to
allow that to happen currently.

MR, CARRON:

Thank you,
MR, PAYNE:

Yep.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Adults don't mind renting places that
are themed for apparently kids' stuff? I mean,
that's just a question.

MR. PAYNE:

Yeah, No. TIt's a good question. Yes,
we get that a lot. We ask them, you know, what
made you want to purchase this, and they said,
well, the kids said we had to get the Pokemon. So

I guess they're scrolling and looking for places

Stmpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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and then the kids are, sounds like, part of that
discussion.

So whatever makes the kid happy on a
traveling trip, I think that anyone that has a
family knows that that's going to win out. So if
the kid is happy, everyone is happy.

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Any other questions? Any other
questions?

(No response.)

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you.
MR, PAYNE:

Okay.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Is there anyone in the audience to speak
in favor of the applicant's request? Anyone to
speak in favor?

(No response.)

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Anyone to speak in opposition? Anyone
to speak in opposition of the request?

With no one speaking in opposition, we
will consider that hearing closed.

MR, CREEL:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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This is a request for these three units,
which are duplexes, so it would be six units in
total that are being considered. If you'll recall
back when we were discussing short-term rental for
the first time, there was some mixed opinions
about whether or not short-term rental was a good
thing or a bad thing.

And we had some people in the audience
who said that they had long-term rentals for a
long time and that they would much rather have
someone in there that was only in there for a
shorter period of time where they could go back
and check the condition rather than have somebody
in there for a long time that left and only then
did they realize that thelr property had been
destroyed.

Rodenberg is a major corridor through
there. It's almost commercial because it goes
from commercial to commercial.

One of the things that I remember every
time we discussed this is what Mr., Foster said.
Barney Foster was the first one to apply for a
short~term rental and there was some questions
about, you know, the property is going to go down.

They're not going to maintain it., They won't cut

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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the grass, so on and so forth.

And Mr. Foster said, I have done a lot
of research into this and he said, T can tell you
that when you're in the short-term rental
business, all it takes is one bad review online
and you're out of business, that you have to keep
your standards up here on the short-term rental to
keep people coming back and to make sure that
you're not being discredited online.

We think this is a great thing for this
area and the staff has no objection and would
recommend approval.

MR. TODARQO:

I move we approve.
DR. DRAWDY:

I'11 second.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Motion by Mr. Todaro for approval;
second by Dr, Drawdy.

Is there any discussion?

MR, PAYNE:

Any chance that his statement can get
into the record so I can bring it to Council?
MR. COLLIER:

The Council is here.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

It's all on record.

Any discussion?

There being no discussion, please vote
by raising your hand.

Mr, Todaro, Ms, Magee, Mr. Stanovich,
Mr. Bogard, Mr, Collier, Mr. Delahousey,
Dr. Drawdy, Mr. Carron, Mr. King, Mr. Snow,
Mr. Parker; and myself, Mr. Dellenger. That
motion carries unanimously.

That is going to be for all three cases.
That's going to be for Case Number 26-019-PC, Case
Number 26-020~-PC and Case Number 26-021-PC,

The next case on the agenda is Case
Number 26-022-PC, Ulhas Sawant, owner, and Bobby
Heinrich, applicant, a request for a conditional
use approval to authorize construction of a
6, 700~square-foot plaza including a convenience
store with gas sales with two additional tenant
spaces upon a parcel of land measuring
approximately 1.31 acres, more or less, presently
situated within an LB, Limited Business, zone and
identified as 416 Popp's Ferry Road. Tax Parcel
1110A~01-051.001. And this case was advertised on
March 20th and March 27th.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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Can we see the video, please?
MS. SERPAS:

{Video played.)

Okay.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you.

Is Mr, Heinrich here?
MR. HEINRICH:

Yes.,
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Mr., Heinrich, if you could, please tell
us what your plans are.
MR. HEINRICH:

Okay. Thank y'all for being here today.

My name is Bobby Heinrich at 1806 23rd
Avenue in Gulfport.

I'm here to represent Mr, Sawant on this
project here. 8o we've gone through DRC., We
received comments. We went through bRC twice and
received comments., We've updated the plan to meet
all of the guidelines. We're not asking for
variances, We're not asking for tree cutting.
We're not asking for anything. Everything meets
the ordinance. This property is already zoned

correctly for this project. It needs conditional

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

W O N sy s W e

DONNN N N R R R R Bl
[ X R N = - == R "N T SO JC R R PR,

w o N2y o W N

T T T N S S e
G & W RN = S v © -1 & & &= W N = O

35

use from you guys to let us move forward.

80 I have —— I was able to read some of
the stuff over here, some of the commentsrthat
you've had on this project and I would like to
hold that back and listen and I would like to
address those afterwards, if that's okay.

But I've got a -~ I'm sure y'all have
seen the site plan, but we've met, We've got
these driveways away from the intersection as far
as we can to make 1t possible for a truck to come
in from the north to come in early hours of the
day. They do this. This is not during the day.
This is -~ no traffic is going to be held up by a
gas truck to put in fuel.

We were asked to put this drive out here
onto Bertucci Drive so the truck could go out this
way and come back around and have a smooth way of
coming in and out the property when they do their
delivery,

The building is back here in the corner.
We have two lease spaces that we would like to
provide for this. There is ample amount of
parking.

We -~ all these dark trees right there,

these are all live oak trees, and I've already —--

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228,388.3130

36

me and the tree ladies have already gotten along
with that and we're going to leave those trees
alone.

There's some water oaks up in this area
right there. A lot of them are rotten. And if
you know anything about a water oak, they die from
the inside out, so a lot of -- all of those will
be gone. I mean, some of them don't even have, I
mean, they're just stumps.

But anyway, all of this will meet
everything that the City of Biloxi requires for
detention, We have utilities there. We're
putting our grease trap and our dumpster back here
in the corner so it's easy access back here to
take care of that.

I was asked to do a rendering. This is
just a real quick rendering. This may not be the
final product on the outside, but it will be
either a stone or a brick feature. This is not a
Buc~ees. And this is not -- you know, a big, huge
convenience —— you know, it's a convenience store
with gas. That's what this is.

It's not -- I understand there is some
concerns about, you know, more traffic and all

that., This is a convenience for people going home
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